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| OUR MISSION |

We aim to be the brand development and
management company that will improve the lives
of our target customers through innovative products
and services and focus our resources to ensure
growth, profitability and shareholders’ value.
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| LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS |
Dear Shareholders
The financial year ended 31 July 2006
(“FY2006”) shall go down in our corporate
annals as a bitter and sweet year for the
Group. During the year, the Group faced
difficulties in the declining beauty and
wellness business whilst at the same time
revelled to the positive reception to its
lifestyle businesses.
Despite the successful launches and
positive contributions from the Balcony
Bar and Ministry of Sound, which fortified
managements conviction in the lifestyle
business strategy, the unfavourable
operating conditions of the beauty and
wellness business continued to mount
throughout FY2006 hindering the Group’s
strategic progression. This necessitated
our actions to alleviate the negative impact
of the beauty and wellness business
on the Group and ultimately secure the
future interests of the Group and all
its shareholders.
Having made the necessary decision, the
Group can now fully address the future
prospects with renewed vigour. The
Company’s management team is
confident that with the freed up resources
it will be better able to capitalise on the
prevailing bullish market sentiments to
strengthen and expand the Group’s
performing lifestyle business.

Review of Operations in FY2006
In our FY2005 annual report, we shared
with shareholders our laying of the
foundation to take the Group to the next
level of growth. The Group actively
expanded its portfolio of lifestyle brands
last year by developing internally and
acquiring the rights to acclaimed
international brands for the region. We
also secured tactical locations in advance
with key business associates to house
each of our lifestyle concepts. In hindsight,
our bold shift of focus to the lifestyle
business was timely and we have been
able to catch the onset of growth in
consumer demand and spending brought
about by major government initiatives in
Singapore and across the region.
In FY2006, the Group continued to pursue
promising new opportunities in the lifestyle
business whilst it materialised and
launched its earlier conceived concepts
progressively from Quarter 2 (“Q2”) of
FY2006. The Group’s main lifestyle
businesses – the Moroccan themed The
Balcony located at The Heeren and the
avant-garde Ministry of Sound located
at Clarke Quay The Cannery – opened
to the public in late November and
December 2005 respectively. The Group
also commenced, in the year, operations
of two lifestyle concepts which specifically
tailor to the discerning affluent female

| Michael Wong C.K. |
CEO
| Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh |
COO
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audience, Dashing Diva Nail Spa and
Boutique at Suntec City Mall and our
in-house developed Nué brand of ladies
fashion shoes located in Paragon
Shopping Centre.
However, amongst the excitement of
the grand opening of the lifestyle
businesses and their encouraging maiden
contributions to the Group, management
continued to address the challenges
affecting the supplements sector which
the LifePharm products occupy. As also
mentioned in our FY2005 annual report,
we detected a slowdown in demand and
an increasingly challenging operating
environment for our beauty and wellness
supplements business in Q4 FY2005.
These unfavourable conditions persisted
throughout FY2006 and negatively
impacted the net profit and net asset
value of the Group.
Following a thorough evaluation of all
relevant considerations, including the
strategic shift in focus to the promising
lifestyle business, the directors concluded
that an expeditious disposal of the
loss-making LifePharm Companies
would enable the Group to conserve its
limited financial resources and free up
management time. On 28 July 2006, the
Company entered into an agreement
for the sale (“Disposal”) of its entire

shareholding interests in the three
subsidiaries, LifePharm Pte Ltd, LifePharm
Asia Limited, and ThaiNutri Co., Ltd. (“the
LifePharm Companies”), companies which
the Group had been carrying out its
business relating to beauty and wellness
supplement products. Full details on the
Disposal have been disclosed in the
relevant Circular to shareholders dated
4 October 2006.
Financial Review
The financial statements of the Group for
FY2006 should be read in light of two
significant events which occurred in the
year. As mentioned above, the Group
recorded its maiden contributions from
its lifestyle businesses which progressively
commenced operations in Q2 FY2006
and secondly the Company entered into
an agreement for the Disposal of
LifePharm Companies on 28 July 2006.
Pursuant to the Disposal, the Group
is required to separately disclose its
results for the financial year ended 31
July 2006, categorised under Continuing
Operations and Discontinued Operations.
Accordingly, the comparison of year-onyear changes of line items as highlighted
in previous annual reports will not be
meaningful and hence omitted. Similarly,
the balance sheet line items for the year
ended 31 July 2005 are mainly comprised
of the Discontinued Operations of the
Group and again will not be compared
as was in previous years.
Also, as the major businesses under
the Beauty/Wellness/Fashion product
category were from the LifePharm
Companies and now categorised under

Discontinued Operations, segmentation
into Beauty/Wellness/Fashion and
LifeStyle product categories will no longer
be required.
Income Statement
Continuing Operations in FY2006
achieved S$3.3 million in profit after tax.
These maiden earnings were generated
by businesses that had commenced
operations mainly in December 2005, and
operated for approximately eight months
in FY2006. However, due to the loss from
deterioration of businesses under
Discontinued Operations, the Group
recorded a net loss for the year of S$21.5
million while loss attributed to equity
holders amounted to S$21.9 million.
Continuing Operations:
During FY2006, the Group redeployed
resources and staff from its Beauty and
Wellness product category to focus on
the initial setting up of premises and
inaugural launch events for its new lifestyle
product concepts.
For FY2006, the Group recorded aftertax profit from Continuing Operations of
S$3.3 million on the back of S$19.1 million
in total sales, largely attributed to its
Ministry of Sound club.
Other gains (net) included miscellaneous
income of S$1.4 million mainly attributed
to the 10% service charge received by
lifestyle businesses’ outlets, as well as
a non-recurring exceptional income of
S$1.8 million arising from the sale of a
20% equity interest in wholly-owned
subsidiary Cannery Holding Pte Ltd in
January 2006.

Total operating expenses amounted to
S$18.8 million. In line with businesses in
the service industry, major expense items
are service-staff related, i.e., employee
benefits of S$5.3 million; inventories and
consumables that amounted to S$4.7
million; and advertising, media and
entertainment related expenses of
S$1.9 million. Finance cost incurred
was S$0.4 million.
In addition, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment amounted to S$1.2
million while rental was S$1.6 million
and amortisation and impairment of
intangibles assets was S$0.6 million.
Other operating expenses of S$1.5
million comprise miscellaneous items,
e.g., equipment rental, repair and
maintenance, MIS expenses, utilities,
telecommunication charges and other
administrative overheads.
Discontinued Operations:
These operations comprise businesses
relating to beauty and wellness
supplement products undertaken by the
LifePharm Companies.
In view of the challenging market
conditions, FY2006 sales up to the date
of disposal of 28 July 2006 amounted
to S$3.7 million compared to S$42.7
million achieved in FY2005.
Net costs/expenses incurred during
the corresponding periods were S$26.8
million in FY2006 and S$35.8 million
in FY2005.
Loss from Discontinued Operations for
the financial year 2006 up to the date
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of disposal 28 July 2006 amounted to
S$23.1 million, as compared with profit
after tax of S$5.5 million in FY2005.
Coupled with a one-time loss on disposal
of Discontinued Operations of S$1.7
million, total loss attributed to Discontinued
Operations amounted to S$24.8 million.
Balance Sheet
The balance sheet items as at 31 July
2006 only reflect the remaining assets
and liabilities of the Group after the
Disposal.
As the Continuing Operations mainly
entail sales transacted on a cash basis.
Trade and other receivables only stood
at S$1.4 million and include S$0.6 million
in outstanding consideration from the
buyer of the Cannery Holdings (payable
by end 2006), receivables of S$0.5 million
from corporate events and sponsorship
and miscellaneous receivables for
expenses incurred in advance for
new businesses.
Other current assets of S$1.1 million
include an amount of approximately S$0.5
million relating to deposits for lease and
utilities as well as various prepayments
amounting to S$0.6 million, mainly related
to franchise/music entertainment fees and
other prepayments (licences, insurance,
maintenance etc).
Property, plant and equipment amounted
to S$8.2 million. Intangible assets of
S$1.0 million encompass franchise fees

and licences paid upfront in respect of
the lifestyle businesses.
Trade and other payables stood at S$4.2
million and mainly include payments
due to suppliers and accruals for
operating expenses.
Total borrowings amounted to S$8.1
million while cash and cash equivalents
amounted to S$13.9 million, thus the
Group is in a net cash position.
Total shareholders’ equity amounted
to S$12.1 million with retained earnings
recording a negative balance of S$17.6
million mainly attributed to loss from
discontinued operations.
Net cash used in operating activities
decreased from S$5.4 million to S$1.3
million in FY2006. Net cash used in
investing activities increased by S$8.6
million to S$10.1 million in FY2006 due
mainly to the purchases of property, plant
and equipment primarily for the lifestyle
businesses. Cash flow from financing
activities increased due to increased bank
borrowings for the lifestyle businesses.
Continuing Strategy
LifeBrandz is committed to its core
business of developing and managing
consumer brands for the Asia region.
The Company’s strength is its ability
to identify and target existing and
forthcoming opportunities in the market
then capitalising on them by developing
well devised branding strategies and

Henceforth, the Group will focus on
accelerating its plans for the continuing
development of its promising lifestyle
business to capitalise on the prevailing
bullish market sentiments in the
Singapore economy.
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following through to actualising the
complete consumer experience package.
Our unique team of founders and
management have the vision, the network
and the ability to execute the definition of
LifeBrandz as the regional leader in brand
development and management for the
lifestyle sector. Back in FY2005, the Group
announced its shift in focus to its lifestyle
brands away from the beauty and
wellness brands of the past. In retrospect,
we are pleased that we had the foresight
to make this decisive move early-on, thus
capturing great advantage for the Group
and you the shareholders. By embarking
on negotiations and positioning the Group
early on for the lifestyle business, ahead
of any leading indicators of the upcoming
improvements in Singapore’s economy,
management was able to negotiate and
finalise more favourably termed licensing
and longer-term rental agreements, thus
securing greater business stability and
success for the future.
In FY2006, the Group continued its pursuit
of developing the lifestyle business. With
the successful delivery of the trend setting,
The Balcony Bar, Ministry of Sound,
Dashing Diva and Nué, the Group quickly
established itself as amongst the most
dynamic lifestyle players in the country
and region. This notoriety has attracted
the interest of more high calibre
international lifestyle brands who wish to
entrust us to manage their brands and
also property companies who have
proposed regional tie-ups. LifeBrandz is
at various stages of evaluating these

proposals. We view our current positioning
favourably as the Group is well poised to
capitalise on the changing traditional
mindsets and lifestyle trends in Asia.
These upcoming changes are nowhere
more evident than in the Group’s home
of Singapore where the recent major
developments in the two integrated
resort-cum-casinos advocated by the
Government has affect the way the current
and future generations live, work and play.
Further to the above, the Group has
built up an impressive portfolio of brands,
some of which still await revelation.
Our brands are each at different stages
in their lifecycle and the Company
dynamically manages them all,
strengthening and making the portfolio
more pertinent year on year. Promising
brands are sought out for development
whereas existing brands are evaluated
for further investment and incubation or
are expediently removed when necessary.
The Company’s ability to effectively
manage this portfolio has been a
significant factor for its past successes
and is vitally important going into the
future as this is the lifeline for future
businesses and projects.
Over the years the Group has received
notable recognition for its ability to develop
its own in-house brands, zeroing in on
the relevant theme driven trigger points
and positioning to ensure buy-in and
continuing patronage. We continue to
see the value in developing additional
in-house brands, as ownership results in
us receiving the full benefit derived from
their success. In-house brands also allow
the Group the advantage of injecting
un-deterred LifeBrandz flavour into
concepts, permitting the testing of
the market for acceptance. In addition

to this, the Company’s aims to also
selectively acquire the rights to more
internationally acclaimed brands as
this enables the Company to rapidly tap
upon the brand’s global goodwill and
also allows management to more quickly
acquire relevant in-depth knowledge of
long-term proven operating systems and
industry know how.
Outlook for FY2007
Having disposed of the LifePharm
Companies and thus discontinuing related
uncertainties in the deteriorating beauty
and wellness supplements business,
the directors are now able to express
a confident outlook on the Group’s
prospects and performance in FY2007.
Henceforth, the Group will focus on
accelerating its plans for the continuing
development of its promising lifestyle
business to capitalise on the prevailing
bullish market sentiments in the
Singapore economy.
The Group’s two major lifestyle concepts
– The Balcony Bar and Ministry of Sound
are expected to continue to perform well
and the Group is proceeding with the
development of new concepts in the
pipeline, including those for Phase II of
the Clarke Quay’s Cannery block.
The Group expects to kick off Phase II
in 1H FY2007 with the internationally
acclaimed Bice Ristorante and FTV Bar
brands, offering customers a prime choice
array of wining and dining experiences.
These brands have already made their
presence known across the world’s
exciting cosmopolitan cities and new
outlets have constantly opened to rave
reviews. Bice Ristorante which originated
in Milan, Italy in 1926, features a menu

based on its skilful blend of traditional
and newer trends in Italian cuisine, catering
to the discerning palates of the affluent
market. Paris-based Fashion TV Bar is a
hot zone for devotees of the world’s high
fashion with non-stop broadcasts of top
fashion shows graced by international
marquee-name designers and models,
akin to sitting in the front row seats at a
fashion show coupled with intimate back
stage passes off the catwalks.
The Group’s optimism on its enhanced
future prospects is buoyed by the IMF’s
latest growth projections for the Singapore
economy, the Singapore Tourism Board's
forecasted inbound tourism arrivals and
the ability of its lifestyle business to
continue benefiting from unprecedented
new demand drivers derived from the
expected huge spending budgets
publicised by the world-leading gaming
and resort companies as they attempt to
boost their appeal in Singapore’s IR-cum
casino projects.
In conclusion, the Group wishes to express
its appreciation to all its customers,
business partners, investors and loyal
shareholders who have continued to stand
by us throughout the year. We also take
this opportunity to acknowledge the
invaluable contribution and commitment
of our board of directors, as well as the
dedicated team at LifeBrandz.

Yours sincerely
Michael Wong C.K.
CEO
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
COO
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| BOARD OF DIRECTORS |

Michael Wong C.K.
Executive Director

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Executive Director

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Executive Director

Mr. Wong was appointed as our
Executive Director on 21 April 2004
(last re-appointed on 8 November 2004)
and is the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
and co-founder of the Group.

Mr. Goh was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 November 2003 (last
re-appointed on 18 November 2005) and
is the Chief Operating Officer (“COO”) and
co-founder of the Group. Mr. Goh is also
a member of the Group’s Nominating and
Remuneration Committees.

Mr. Lee was appointed as our Executive
Director on 19 January 2005 (last
re-appointed on 18 November 2005)
and is the Chief Brand Officer (“CBO”)
of the Group.

As CEO, Mr. Wong is responsible for the
overall management of our Group, setting
strategic directions and plans for the
Group’s future growth and expansion.
Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Wong
accumulated valuable management
experience from various industries ranging
from lifestyle products and services,
banking, finance and accounting. He held
various senior positions in the leading
international banks, including Citibank,
N.A (Singapore), UBS AG (Singapore)
and Merrill Lynch International Bank Ltd
(Singapore).
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As COO, Mr. Goh’s area of responsibility
includes administration, legal matters,
banking relationships and general
management. He is also responsible
in assisting the Group CEO in setting
the long term direction and strategy of
the Group.
Prior to founding our Group, Mr. Goh
had more than 10 years experience in
the banking and finance industry holding
senior positions, including Head of
Privilege Banking at the Singapore Branch
of Bangkok Bank, and managerial
positions with Merrill Lynch International
Bank (Singapore), Citibank, N.A (Singapore),
Societe Generale and Schroder
International Merchant Bankers Ltd.

As CBO, Mr. Lee is responsibilities include
developing and managing the Group’s
brand portfolio. He is also responsible
for assisting the Group CEO in setting
the long term direction and strategy of
the Group.
Prior to his appointment at the Group,
Mr. Lee had more than 13 years of
multi-brand, multi-industry experience
from design and advertising to media and
marketing. Having held various senior
positions in both the communications and
consumer sector regionally, Mr. Lee brings
with him in-depth branding experience
that has resulted in the winning of various
Superbrands and awards for the Group.

| BOARD OF DIRECTORS |

Thomas Carlton Thompson, III
Non-Executive Director

Lee Soon Kie
Independent Director

Irwin Lim Kee Way
Independent Director

Mr. Thompson was appointed as our
Non-Executive Director on 21 April 2004
(last re-appointed on 8 November 2004).
He is also a member of the Group’s
Audit Committee.

Mr. Lee was appointed as an Independent
Director of the Group on 21 April 2004
(last re-appointed on 8 November 2004).
He is also Chairman of the Group’s
Nominating and Remuneration
Committees and a member of the
Group’s Audit Committee.

Mr. Lim was appointed as an Independent
Director of the Group on 21 April 2004
(last re-appointed on 18 November 2005).
He is also Chairman of the Group’s
Audit Committee and a member of the
Group’s Nominating and Remuneration
Committees.

Mr. Lee is currently the Group Chief
Executive Officer of IFS Capital Limited
(“IFS”), a financial services group involved
in commerce finance, structured finance,
private equity and credit insurance and
guarantees. Prior to IFS, he was a senior
executive of the PhillipCapital group of
companies where he was in charge of
the institutional business involving mergers
and acquisitions as well as debt capital
markets business. He also holds
directorships in various PhillipCapital
companies.

Mr. Lim is currently the Group VicePresident of Corporate Development of
United Test and Assembly Centre Ltd
(UTAC) where he is responsible for its
M&A, business development, legal and
IR/PR activities. He holds directorships
in various UTAC Group companies and
is a Board member of Centillion
Environment & Recycling Limited.

Mr. Thompson is currently a director of
ACH Investments Pte Ltd, an investment
advisory firm.
Prior to that, Mr. Thompson held various
senior positions in leading foreign banks
including a Partner in SBC-Brinson (now
UBS Asset Management), CEO AsiaPacific of HSBC Asset Management,
Managing Director of Wardley Investment
Services (Australia) Limited and Chief
Economist of Wardley Investment Services
(Hong Kong). Mr Thompson is also a past
Chairman of the Hong Kong Investment
Funds Association.

Before PhillipCapital, Mr. Lee was with
the Schroders Group in South East Asia
holding various senior appointments,
including Head of Fixed Income (Asia) as
well as Managing Director and Country
Head for Schroders (Thailand) Limited.
In his capacity as Managing Director
and Country Head in Thailand, he was
responsible for cross border financing
and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Lee
was also appointed to the Board of
Directors of Schroder International
Merchant Bankers Limited, a whollyowned subsidiary of Schroders PLC.

Mr. Lim has vast experience in the field
of venture capital and private equity
activities in Asia and was previously
responsible for AsiaVest Partners,
TCW/YFY (Taiwan) Ltd’s investments,
primarily in the Southeast Asian region.
Mr. Lee who started his career with
the Economic Development Board of
Singapore had also been involved in
investment consulting services.
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| KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM |
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Michael Wong C.K.
Chief Executive Officer
As CEO, Mr. Wong is responsible for the overall
management of our Group, setting strategic
directions and plans for the Group’s future growth
and expansion.

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Chief Brand Officer
As CBO, Mr. Lee is responsibilities include developing
and managing the Group’s brand portfolio. He is also
responsible for assisting the Group CEO in setting the
long term direction and strategy of the Group.

Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Wong accumulated
valuable management experience from various
industries ranging from lifestyle products and services,
banking, finance and accounting. He held various
senior positions in the leading international banks,
including Citibank, N.A (Singapore), UBS AG
(Singapore) and Merrill Lynch International Bank
Ltd (Singapore).

Prior to his appointment at the Group, Mr. Lee had
more than 13 years of multi-brand, multi-industry
experience from design and advertising to media and
marketing. Having held various senior positions in both
the communications and consumer sector regionally,
Mr. Lee brings with him in-depth branding experience
that has resulted in the winning of various Superbrands
and awards for the Group.

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Chief Operating Officer
As COO, Mr. Goh’s area of responsibility includes
administration, legal matters, banking relationships
and general management. He is also responsible
in assisting the Group CEO in setting the long term
direction and strategy of the Group.

Koh Boon Liang
Chief Financial Officer
As CFO, Mr. Koh is responsible for financial, accounting,
business development and corporate secretariat aspects
of our Group. He is also responsible for assisting the
Group CEO in setting the long term direction and
strategy of the Group.

Prior to founding our Group, Mr. Goh had more than
10 years experience in the banking and finance
industry holding senior positions, including Head
of Privilege Banking at the Singapore Branch of
Bangkok Bank, and managerial positions with Merrill
Lynch International Bank (Singapore), Citibank,
N.A (Singapore), Societe Generale and Schroder
International Merchant Bankers Ltd.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Koh had more than 16
years of experience in the areas of accounting, business
development, and corporate finance. Mr. Koh held
various senior positions such as Business Development
Director and Regional Chief Financial Officer at a MNC
as well as a public listed company, and various
managerial positions in an international investment bank
and an international accounting firm.
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| BOARD OF DIRECTORS |
Michael Wong C.K.
Executive Director

| JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES |
Koh Boon Liang
FCPA

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Executive Director

Tan Ping Ping
ACIS

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Executive Director

Lee Soon Kie
Independent Director

| REGISTERED OFFICE |
123 Penang Road
#03-12 Regency House
Singapore 238465
Tel : (65) 6733 3280
Fax : (65) 6733 3910
Email : invest@lifebrandz.com
Website : www.lifebrandz.com

Irwin Lim Kee Way
Independent Director

| REGISTRATION NUMBER |
200311348E

| KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM |
Michael Wong C.K.
Chief Executive Officer

| AUDITORS |
PricewaterhouseCoopers
8 Cross Street #11-00
PWC Building
Singapore 048424

Thomas Carlton Thompson, III
Non-Executive Director

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Chief Operating Officer
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Chief Brand Officer
Koh Boon Liang
Chief Financial Officer

| PARTNER-IN-CHARGE |
Tham Tuck Seng
(Since financial year 2004)

| PRINCIPAL BANKERS |
Bangkok Bank Public
Company Limited
180 Cecil Street
Bangkok Bank Building
Singapore 069546
Malayan Banking Berhad
2 Battery Road
Maybank Tower
Singapore 049907
Oversea-Chinese Banking
Corporation Limited
65 Chulia Street
OCBC Centre
Singapore 049513
Southern Bank Berhad
39 Robinson Road
#01-02 Robinson Point
Singapore 068911
The Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
21 Collyer Quay, #08-01
HSBC Building
Singapore 049320

| SHARE REGISTRAR AND
SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE |
Tricor Barbinder Share
Registration Services
(A division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.)

8 Cross Street #11-00
PWC Building
Singapore 048424
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| FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS |

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
S$’000

Continuing
Operations

FY2006
Discontinued
Operations

FY2005

FY2004

FY2003

FY2002

Total

OPERATING RESULTS
Sales

19,063

3,672

22,735

42,679

53,339

19,592

1,112

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Minority Interest

3,503

(24,786)

(21,283)

6,351

12,033

5,891

(163)

Profit/(Loss) After Tax and Minority Interest

2,856

(24,780)

(21,924)

4,929

9,623

4,621

(163)

Net Cash generated from/(used in) Operating Activities

(1,277)

(5,366)

11,032

720

(35)

Net Cash generated from/(used in) Investing Activities

(10,106)

(1,527)

(722)

(155)

(64)

5,719

(4,082)

18,521

541

200

CASH FLOW

Net Cash generated from/(used in) Financing Activities
BALANCE SHEET
Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Non-Current Liabilities

9,224

2,038

625

61

40

16,930

41,197

43,967

9,862

360

2,302

–

–

–

–

Current Liabilities

11,758

9,239

10,966

5,008

363

Shareholders’ Equity

11,466

33,996

33,626

4,915

37

(3.58)

0.81

1.57

0.96*

-0.03*

1.87

5.55

5.49

1.02

0.01

-191%

14%

29%

94%

-430%

FINANCIAL RATIO
Earnings/(Loss) per Share (cents) – basic

0.47

(4.05)

Net Assets per Share (cents)
Return on Equity

25%

-216%

* Based on pre-invitation share capital of 480,000,000 for FY2002 and FY2003

| GROUP STRUCTURE (AS AT 31 JULY 2006) |

| LifeBrandz Ltd |

100%

Luminox Pte. Ltd.

100%

N-Inc Pte.Ltd.
LB Investments
Limited
Ministry of Sound
Pte. Ltd.

100%
80%

Dashing Diva
Pte.Ltd.

100%

Brandz+ Pte.Ltd.
100%

100%

LifePharm Inc
Orientstar Group
Limited
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Balcony Pte.Ltd.

100%

Cannery Holding
Pte.Ltd.
Cannery Leisure
Pte.Ltd.

100%

100%

100%

Palms Development
Pte. Ltd.

100%
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| CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT |
The Board of Directors of LifeBrandz Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to ensure that
the highest standards of corporate governance
and transparency are practised throughout
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
as a fundamental part of discharging its
responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholder
value and the financial information of the Group.
In view of this, the Board fully supports the principles
behind the Code of Corporate Governance (the
“Code”), which forms part of the Continuing
Obligations of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)'s Listing Manual,
by adopting and adapting the Code throughout
the Group.

The principal functions of the Board are:

The SGX-ST’s Listing Manual requires an issuer
to describe its corporate governance practices
with specific reference to the Code in its annual
report. It must also disclose any deviation
from any aspect of the Code together with an
appropriate explanation for such deviation in the
annual report.
This statement outlines the policies adopted during
the financial year ended 31 July 2006 and practised
by the Group, with specific reference given to the
relevant provisions of the Code.
THE CODE
The Code is divided into four main sections:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Board Matters
Remuneration Matters
Accountability and Audit
Communications with Shareholders

BOARD MATTERS
Principle 1:
The Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
Every company should be led and controlled
by an effective Board to enable the
Company, its shareholders and other
stakeholders to achieve their respective
objectives.
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1.

reviewing and approving corporate strategies,
annual budgets and financial plans and
monitoring the organisational performance
towards them;

2.

reviewing the adequacy and integrity of
the Company’s internal controls, risk
management systems, and the financial
information reporting systems;

3.

ensuring the Group’s compliance to laws,
regulations, policies, directives, guidelines
and internal code of conduct;

4.

approving the nominations to the Board of
directors by Nominating Committee (“NC”) and
endorsing the appointments of management
team and external auditors;

5.

reviewing and approving the remuneration
packages for the Board and key executives;
and

6.

ensuring accurate, adequate and timely
reporting to, and communication with
shareholders.

Matters which are specifically reserved to the full
Board for decision include those involving corporate
plans and budgets, material acquisitions and
disposal of assets, corporate and financial
restructuring, share issuances, dividends,
other returns to shareholders and interested
person transactions.
The Board has delegated specific responsibilities
to 3 sub-committees (Audit, Nominating, and
Remuneration), the details of which are set out
below. These committees function within its
respective clearly defined terms of references
and operating procedures, which are reviewed
on a regular basis. These committees have the
authority to examine particular issues and report
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back to the Board with fair recommendation.
The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on
all matters, however, lies with the entire Board.
The effectiveness of each committee is also
constantly reviewed by the Board.
The Board meets at least 4 times a year, with
additional meetings conveyed as necessary. Board
meetings are held in Singapore and the directors
attend the meetings regularly. The matrix on the
position, the frequency of the meeting and the
attendance of directors at these meetings are set
out on page 20.
Principle 2:
Board’s Composition and Balance
There should be a strong and independent
element on the Board, which is able to
exercise objective judgment on corporate
affairs independently, in particular, from
Management. No individual or small group
of individuals should be allowed to dominate
the Board's decision making.
The Board of Directors comprises six directors,
two of whom are independent directors. All
Board members bring about an independent
judgement and diversified knowledge and
experiences to bear on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standards of
conduct. A brief description on the background
of each director is presented on “Board of
Directors” section on page 6.
The criteria for independence is determined
based on the definition as provided in the
Code. The Board considers an “independent”
director as one who has no relationship with
the Company, its related companies or its
officers that could interfere, or be reasonably
perceived to interfere, with the exercise of
the directors’ independent judgement of the
Group’s affairs. As independent directors make
up almost half of the Board, no individual or
group is able to dominate the Board’s decisionmaking process.

The independence of each director is reviewed
annually by the NC.
The Board examines its size to satisfy that it is
an appropriate size for effective decision making,
taking into account the nature and scope of
the Company’s operations. The NC is of the
view that the current board size of six directors
is appropriate.
Principle 3:
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There should be a clear division of
responsibilities at the top of the company –
the working of the Board and the executive
responsibility of the company’s business –
which will ensure a balance of power and
authority, such that no one individual represents
a considerable concentration of power.
The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Company
is Mr. Michael Wong C. K. There is no appointed
Chairman of the Board of Directors. Although,
Mr. Michael Wong C. K. is the CEO of the Company,
he has been elected to chair at each Board of
Directors’ Meeting and bears responsibility for the
conduct of the Board. There is no concentration
of power as the Group is run objectively on a
transparent basis as the Board feels that there is
adequate representation of independent and nonexecutive Directors (more than 1/3) on the Board.
As a general rule, board papers are sent to the
directors in advance in order for the directors
to be adequately prepared for the meeting.
Management staff who have prepared the papers
are invited to present the paper at the meeting.
Principle 4:
Board Membership
There should be a formal and transparent
process for the appointment of new directors
to the Board. As a principle of good corporate
governance, all directors should be required
to submit themselves for re-nomination and
re-election at regular intervals.
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Nominating Committee
NC comprises three members, a majority of whom,
including the Chairman, are independent. The
members of the NC are:
•

Mr. Lee Soon Kie
Chairman and Independent Director

•

Mr. Irwin Lim Kee Way
Independent Director

•

Mr. Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Executive Director

The NC has adopted the written terms of reference
which describes the responsibilities of NC and the
proceedings at NC meetings.
The NC’s principal responsibilities are as follows:
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(a)

recommend to the Board on all board
appointments and re-appointments;

(b)

determine independence of the Directors
annually;

(c)

determine whether or not a Director is
able to and has been adequately carrying
out his duties as Director of the Company;

at the first opportunity after their appointment.
The Articles of Association of the Company
also require that one-third of the Board retire
from office at each Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”). Accordingly, the Directors submit
themselves for re-nomination and re-election
at regular intervals of at least once every 3 years.
Policy on external appointments
The Group recognises that its executive
directors may be invited to become nonexecutive directors of other companies and
that the exposure to such non-executive duties
can broaden the experience and knowledge
of its executive directors which will benefit
the Group. Executive directors are therefore
allowed to accept non-executive appointments
as long as these are non-competing companies,
are not likely to lead to conflict of interest
and the commitment to the Group is not
compromised.
Principle 5:
Board Performance
There should be a formal assessment of the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole.

In determining the independence of the Directors,
the NC has developed a Return on Independence
which is required to be completed by all Directors
on an annual basis and submitted to NC for
its review.

The NC assesses the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole and the Committees of
the Board on an annual basis. In this aspect,
both quantitative and qualitative criteria were
adopted. The quantitative performance criteria
include, growth in turnover and profitability,
return on assets and profitability on capital
employed. The qualitative measures include
the effectiveness of the Board in its monitoring
role and the attainment of the strategic and
long-term objectives set by the Board. For
this purpose, the NC has developed a
checklist to assist in its assessment of the
Board’s effectiveness at least once every year.

Election and re-election
New directors are appointed by way of a board
resolution, upon their nomination from NC. In
accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, these new directors who are appointed
by the Board are subject to election by shareholders

Principle 6:
Access to Information
In order to fulfill their responsibilities, board
members should be provided with complete,
adequate and timely information prior to board
meetings and on an on-going basis.

(d)

evaluate the performance and effectiveness
of the Board as a whole; and

(e)

oversee the management development
and succession planning of the Group.
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The Board has separate and independent
access to senior management and the company
secretary at all times. Requests for information
from the Board are dealt with promptly by
management. The Board is informed of all
material events and transactions as and when
they occur. The management provides the
Board with quarterly reports of the Group’s
performance. The management also consults
with Board members regularly whenever
necessary and appropriate. The Board is issued
with board papers timely and prior to Board
meetings. Analysts’ reports on the Company
are also forwarded to the directors on an
on-going basis as and when received.
The company secretary attends all board
meetings. The company secretary administers,
attends and prepares minutes of Board meetings,
and assists the Chairman in ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and reviewed
so that the Board functions effectively and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and the relevant rules and regulations
applicable to the Company are complied with.

Remuneration Procedure
The Code endorses, as good practice, a formal
framework for fixing the remuneration packages
of individual, with a Remuneration Committee
making recommendations to the Board.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) comprises
three members, a majority of whom, including
the Chairman, are independent. The members
of the RC are:
•

Mr. Lee Soon Kie
Chairman and Independent Director

•

Mr. Irwin Lim Kee Way
Independent Director

•

Mr. Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Executive Director

The RC has adopted the written terms of reference
which describes the responsibilities of RC and the
proceedings at RC meetings.
The RC’s principal responsibilities are as follows:

The Board in fulfilling its responsibilities, can
as a group or individually, when deemed fit,
direct the Company to appoint professional
adviser to render professional advice.
REMUNERATION MATTERS
The Company adopted the objective as
recommended by the Code to determine the
remuneration for a director so as ensure that
the Company attracts and retains the directors
needed to run the Group successfully. The
component parts of remuneration are structured
so as to link rewards to corporate and individual
performance, in the case of executive directors.
In the case of non-executive directors, the
level of remuneration reflects the level of
responsibilities undertaken by the particular
non-executive concerned.
Principle 7:
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
There should be a formal and transparent
procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual directors. No director
should be involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

(a)

approve the structure of the remuneration
package for directors and key management
personnel to ensure that the package is
competitive and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate the directors and key
management personnel of the required
quality to run the Company successfully;

(b)

to review and recommend the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors, CEO
and key executives of the Company annually;

(c)

oversee and review the administration of the
LifeBrandz Employees Share Option (“ESOS”)
as defined in the option scheme. Any matter
pertaining to the ESOS and any dispute and
uncertainty as to the interpretation of the
ESOS, any rule, regulation or procedure
thereunder or any rights under the ESOS shall
be determined by the RC; and

(d)

review the appropriateness of compensation
for Non-Executive Directors including but not
limited to Directors’ fees, allowances and
share options.
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Principle 8:
Level and Mix of Remuneration
The level of remuneration should be
appropriate to attract, retain and motivate
the directors needed to run the company
successfully but companies should avoid
paying more for this purpose. A proportion
of the remuneration, especially that of
executive directors, should be linked to
performance.

Provident Fund) for each executive director
is recommended by the RC, taking into
account the performance of the particular
individual, the inflationary rate and the
information from independent sources on
the rates of salary for similar positions in
a selected group of comparable
organizations.
(b)

Fees
Directors’ fees are set in accordance with
a remuneration framework comprising basic
fees and takes into account factors such
as effort and time spent, and responsibilities
of these directors. Executive directors do
not receive directors’ fees. The payment
of fees to Non-Executive Directors is subject
to approval at the annual general meeting
of the Company.

(c)

Bonus scheme
The Group operates a bonus scheme for
all employees. The criteria for the scheme
is the level of profit achieved against targets
together with an assessment of corporate
and individual's performance.

(d)

Service contract
The service agreement with the executive
directors is valid for an initial period of 3
years commencing 29 April 2004, which
may be renewed thereafter until terminated
by either party giving the other not less
than 6 months’ notice in writing. None of
the service agreements provide for any
benefits upon termination of the service
agreements.

(e)

Share options
The Group operates a share option scheme
for all employees, including executive directors.
The Company has not granted any options
to the employees under the ESOS. With
effect from the new financial year, ESOS will
form part of the variable component of the
employees’ remuneration.

Principle 9:
Disclosure on Remuneration
Each company should provide clear disclosure
of its remuneration policy, level and mix of
remuneration, and the procedure for setting
remuneration, in the company's annual report.
The RC recommends to the Board the framework
of executive remuneration and the remuneration
package for each executive director. The
remuneration packages recommended by the RC
are ultimately approved by the Board. No director
is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Remuneration package
The Company adopts a remuneration policy for
staff comprising a fixed and variable component.
The fixed component is in the form of a base salary.
The variable component is in the form of a variable
bonus which is linked to the Group’s performance
as well as the individual’s performance which is
assessed based on their respective key
performance indicators allocated to them. With
effect from the new financial year, the variable
component will also comprise the grant of the
options to staff under ESOS. This seeks to align
the interests of staff with that of the shareholders.
Staff appraisals are conducted once every year.
The remuneration package of directors and key
management personnel includes the following:
(a)
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Basic salary
The basic salary (inclusive of statutory
employer's contributions to Central
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Remuneration package
A breakdown showing the level and mix of each individual director’s remuneration payable for the
financial year ended 31 July 2006 (“FY2006”) is as follows:
2006
1
5
6

$500,000 and above
$250,000 to below $500,000
Below $250,000
Total
Name

Remuneration Band
S$

Michael Wong C. K.
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Thomas Carlton Thompson, III
Lee Soon Kie
Irwin Lim Kee Way

<$250,000
$250,000 to
below $500,000
<$250,000
<$250,000
<$250,000
<$250,000

Salary

2005
6
6
Bonus

%

%

Directors’
Fees
%

Total

100

-

-

100

100
100
-

-

100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100

%

The Company does not have any employee who is an immediate family member of a Director or CEO
whose remuneration in FY2006 exceeded $150,000.
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Principle 10:
Accountability
The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to
the Board.
In presenting the annual financial statements, and quarterly or yearly announcement to shareholders,
the directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's position
and prospects.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors have:
•

selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

•

made judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

ensured that all applicable accounting standards have been followed; and

•

prepared financial statements on a going concern basis as the directors have a reasonable
expectation, having made enquiries, that the Group and the Company have adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
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Principle 11:
Audit Committee
The Board should establish an Audit
Committee with written terms of reference
which clearly set out its authority and duties.
The Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises three
members, all of whom are independent and nonexecutive. At the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises the following members:
•

•

•

(b)

ensures co-operation is given by the
Company’s management to the external
auditors;

(c)

reviews the announcement of year-end results
to SGX-ST;

(d)

reviews the annual financial statements and
the Auditors’ report on the Company’s annual
financial statements before they are presented
to the Board, focusing on:

Mr. Irwin Lim Kee Way
Chairman and Independent Director

•
•

Mr. Lee Soon Kie
Independent Director

•

Mr. Thomas Carlton Thompson, III
Non-executive Director

•
•

The AC is chaired by Mr. Irwin Lim Kee Way, who
is the Group Vice-President of Corporate Finance
of United Test and Assembly Centre Ltd and a
director of AsiaVest Partners TCW/YFY Pte Ltd, a
venture capital firm. Mr. Lim holds a Masters of
Science in Management from Imperial College,
University of London, and a Bachelor of Science
in Industrial Engineering from Columbia University.
The other members of the AC have many years
of experience in business management, corporate
finance, fund management and investment banking.
The NC is of the view that the members of the
AC have the necessary expertise and experience
to discharge its functions.

(e)

review with the management and the external
auditors the adequacy and effectiveness of
the company’s internal controls, business
and service systems and practices;

(f)

monitors and reviews related and interested
party transactions and conflict of interest
situation that may arise within the Group.
The Committee is also required to ensure that
the directors report such transactions annually
to shareholders in the annual report;

(g)

consider the appointment and re-appointment
of the external auditors;

The AC has adopted the written terms of reference
which describes the responsibilities of AC and the
proceedings at AC meetings.

(h)

review significant risks or exposures that exist
and assess the steps taken by management
to minimise such risks to the Company; and

The AC carried out its functions in accordance
with Section 201B(5) of the Singapore Companies
Act, including the following:

(i)

any other functions which may be agreed by
the AC and the Board.

(a)
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going concern assumption;
compliance with accounting standards
and regulatory requirements;
any changes in accounting policies and
practices;
significant issues arising from the
audit; and
major judgemental areas.

reviews with the external auditors of the
Company, their audit plan, evaluation of the
internal accounting controls, audit reports
and any matters which the external auditors
wish to discuss (in the absence of
management, where necessary)

The AC has the power to conduct or authorize
investigations into any matters within the AC's
scope of responsibility. The AC is authorized to
obtain independent professional advice if it deems
necessary in the discharge of its responsibilities.
Such expenses are to be borne by the Company.
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The AC has full access to and co-operation of
the Company’s management and has full
discretion to invite any director or executive
officer to attend the meetings, and has been
given reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions.
Principle 12:
Internal Controls
The Board should ensure that the Management
maintains a sound system of internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments
and the company’s assets.
It is the opinion of the Board that, in the
absence of evidence to the contrary, the system
of internal controls maintained by the Company's
management and that was in place throughout
the financial year and up to the date of
this report provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material financial
misstatements or losses, and includes the
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance
of proper accounting records, the reliability
of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation, regulations and best
practices, and the identification and containment
of financial, operational and compliance risks.
The Board notes that all internal control
systems contain inherent limitations and no
system of internal controls could provide
absolute assurance against the occurrence
of material errors, poor judgement in decisionmaking, human error losses, fraud or other
irregularities.
Principle 13:
Internal Audit
The company should establish an internal
audit function that is independent of the
activities it audits.
The Company outsources its internal audit
function to Stone Forest Consulting Pte Ltd (a
Member of Horwath International) for the financial

year ended 31 July 2006, an external professional
firm, who reports directly to the Chairman of AC
and administratively to the CEO. The objective
of the internal audit function is to determine
whether the Group’s risk management, control
and governance processes, as designed by the
Company, is adequate and functioning in the
required manner. The internal auditors have
identified the Group’s main business processes
and developed an audit plan that covers the
main business process.
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Principle 14:
Companies should engage in regular, effective and
fair communication with shareholders.
The Company does not practise selective
disclosure. In line with continuous obligations
of the Company pursuant to the SGX-ST's
Listing Rules, the Board's policy is that all
shareholders should be equally informed of all
major developments impacting the Group.
Information is disseminated to shareholders on a
timely basis through:
•
•
•

SGXNET Systems and news release
Annual Report prepared and issued to all
shareholders
Company’s website at www.lifebrandz.com
and investor relations site, Shareinvestor, at
which shareholders can access information
on the Group

Results and annual reports are announced or
issued within the mandatory period. The
Group has an investor relation team which
communicates with its investors on a regular
basis and attends to their queries. All shareholders
of the Company will receive a copy of the annual
report and the notice of the Annual General
Meeting. The notice is also advertised in
newspaper and made available at the SGX-ST’s
and the Company’s websites.
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Principle 15:
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at Annual General Meetings and allow
shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.
At the Company’s annual general meetings, shareholders are given the opportunity to voice their views
and ask directors or management questions regarding the Company. The Chairman of the AC, RC and
NC will normally be present at all annual general meetings to answer any questions relating to the work
of these committees.
DEALING IN SECURITIES
In line with the Best Practices Guide issued by the SGX-ST, the Company has in place a policy prohibiting
share dealings by Directors and employees of the Company for the period of two weeks before the
announcement of the Company’s financial statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial
year, or one month prior to the announcement of the Company’s half yearly and yearly results, and
ending on the date of the announcement of the relevant results.
MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There was no material contracts entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries involving the
interest of the CEO, any Director, or controlling shareholder.
INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (“IPTS”)
The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are
reported in a timely manner to the AC and those transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis
and are not prejudicial to the interests of the shareholders.
There have been no interested person transactions for the FY2006.
SUMMARY OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the FY2006 and the attendance of
each director where relevant is as follows:

No. of meetings held

Board

Audit
Committee

Nominating
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

4

4

1

1

N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
3
4
4

N.A.
1
N.A.
N.A.
1
1

N.A.
1
N.A.
N.A.
1
1

No. of meetings attended by respective directors:
Michael Wong C. K.
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Thomas Carlton Thompson, III
Lee Soon Kie
Irwin Lim Kee Way
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| DIRECTORS’ REPORT |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

The directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 July 2006 and the balance sheet of the Company at
31 July 2006.
DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:
Michael Wong C.K.
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Thomas Carlton Thompson, 3rd
Lee Soon Kie
Lim Kee Way Irwin
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end
of the financial year had any interest in the share capital or debentures of the Company and related
corporations, except as follows:
Holdings registered
in name of director
or nominee

Holdings in which a
director is deemed to
have an interest

At
31.7.2006

At
1.8.2005

At
31.7.2006

At
1.8.2005

84,174,800
82,348,000
200,000
60,100,000

84,174,800
82,348,000
200,000
100,000

38,320,800
-

38,320,800
-

The Company
(Ordinary shares of $0.01 each)
Michael Wong C.K.
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Thomas Carlton Thompson, 3rd
Lee Soon Kie
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement

There was no change in the above-mentioned directors’ interests between the end of the financial year
and 21 August 2006.
DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit (other than as disclosed in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member or with
a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.
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| DIRECTORS’ REPORT |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

SHARE OPTIONS
There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the
Company or its subsidiary.
No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up
unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary.
There were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary under option at the end of the
financial year.

On behalf of the directors

KENNETH GOH TZU SEOH
Director

MICHAEL WONG C.K.
Director

18 October 2006
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| STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

In the opinion of the directors,
(a) the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group as set
out on pages 25 to 56 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at 31 July 2006, and of the results of the business, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended; and
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the directors

KENNETH GOH TZU SEOH
Director

MICHAEL WONG C.K.
Director

18 October 2006
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| AUDITORS’ REPORT |
to the members of Lifebrandz Ltd

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LifeBrandz Ltd set out on pages 25 to
56 for the financial year ended 31 July 2006, comprising the balance sheet of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
In our opinion,
(a) the accompanying balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Cap 50
(“the Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 July 2006, and the results, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date; and
(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore, 18 October 2006
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| CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

Notes

The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Continuing operations
Revenue

4

19,063

-

Other gains (net)
- Miscellaneous
- Exceptional gain

4
4

1,429
1,800
3,229

239
239

(4,697)
(1,772)
(5,250)
(1,872)
(1,556)
(302)
(415)
(69)
(926)
(933)
(1,534)

(3)
(60)
(1)
(2)
(355)
(374)

537

-

(18,789)

(795)

3,503

(556)

(219)

(47)

3,284

(603)

(23,113)
(1,667)
(24,780)
(21,496)

5,532
5,532
4,929

(21,924)
428
(21,496)

4,929
4,929

Expenses
- Inventories and consumables used
- Amortisation, depreciation and impairment
- Employee benefits
- Advertising, media and entertainment
- Rental on operating leases
- Transportation
- Finance
- Licence and permits
- Legal and professional fees
- Contract services
- Other

5
7

8

Changes in inventories of finished goods
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

9

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations
before loss on disposal
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Total (loss)/profit from discontinued operations
Total (loss)/profit for the year

10
10

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) from continuing
operations attributable to the equity holders
of the Company (expressed in cents per share)
- Basic and diluted

11

0.47

(0.09)

(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit from discontinued
operations attributable to the equity holders of
the Company (expressed in cents per share)
- Basic and diluted

11

(4.05)

0.90

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Auditors’ Report – Page 24.
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| BALANCE SHEETS |
as at 31 July 2006

Notes

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories - finished goods at cost
Other current assets
Non-current assets
Loan to a subsidiary
Investments in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

12
13
14

15
16
17
18

Total assets

13,902
1,385
537
1,106
16,930

20,025
16,897
607
3,668
41,197

7,208
3,148
138
10,494

18,252
4,725
1,118
24,095

8,233
991
9,224

924
1,114
2,038

1,000
3,300
371
4,671

5,339
5,339

26,154

43,235

15,165

29,434

19
9
20
21

4,181
4
5,973
1,600
11,758

6,207
1,473
1,559
9,239

531
4
2,917
1,600
5,052

161
49
210

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred income taxes

20
22

2,083
219
2,302

-

2,083
2,083

-

Total liabilities

14,060

9,239

7,135

210

NET ASSETS

12,094

33,996

8,030

29,224

29,108
1
(17,643)
11,466
628
12,094

29,108
(9)
4,897
33,996
33,996

29,108
(21,078)
8,030
8,030

29,108
116
29,224
29,224

Minority interest
Total equity
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The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Borrowings
Provision for other liability

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital and share premium
Foreign currency translation reserve
(Accumulated loss)/Retained earnings

26

The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Auditors’ Report – Page 24.
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| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

Notes

Share
capital and
share
premium
$’000

Balance at 1 August 2005

Foreign
Retained
currency
earnings/
translation (accumulated
reserve
loss)
$’000

Minority
interest

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

29,108

(9)

4,897

-

33,996

Net loss for the financial year

-

-

(21,924)

428

(21,496)

Net loss not recognised in
income statement - currency
translation differences

-

(5)

-

-

(5)

Total recognised (losses)/
gains for the financial year

-

(5)

(21,924)

428

(21,501)

Release on disposal
of subsidiaries

12

-

15

-

-

15

Dividend relating to 2005 paid

24

-

-

(616)

-

(616)

-

-

-

200

200

Balance at 31 July 2006

29,108

1

(17,643)

628

12,094

Balance at 1 August 2004

29,188

2

4,436

-

33,626

(80)

-

-

-

(80)

Net profit for the financial year

-

-

4,929

-

4,929

Net loss not recognised in
income statement - currency
translation differences

-

(11)

-

-

(11)

Total recognised (losses)/
gains for the financial year

-

(11)

4,929

-

4,918

-

-

(4,468)

-

(4,468)

29,108

(9)

4,897

-

33,996

Disposal of 20% equity
interest to minority

Share issue expenses adjustment

Dividend relating to 2004 paid
Balance at 31 July 2005

24

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Auditors’ Report – Page 24.
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| CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006
Note

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Total (loss)/profit

(21,496)

4,929

Adjustments for:
Tax
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses of intangibles
Property, plant and equipment written off
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Factoring charges and interest expense
Franchise fee written off
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Exceptional gain
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

213
1,900
267
50
(20)
(305)
616
87
1,667
(1,800)
(18,821)

1,422
422
6
20
(281)
134
6,652

Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
net of effects from disposal of subsidiaries:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Trade and other payables
Provision for other liability
Cash generated from/(used in) operations

43
13,503
2,180
1,681
1,600
186

(254)
(3,586)
(1,584)
(4,250)
(3,022)

(1,463)
(1,277)

(2,344)
(5,366)

(9,080)
106
(686)
305
2,000
(2,751)
(10,106)

(753)
(113)
(942)
281
(1,527)

9,114
(1,658)
(505)
(616)
(616)
5,719

600
(134)
(80)
(4,468)
(4,082)

(5,664)
19,066
(5)
13,397

(10,975)
30,040
1
19,066

Income tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Purchases of franchises and licences
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of 20% equity interest in a subsidiary
Net cash flow from disposal of subsidiaries
Net cash used in investing activities

12

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Placement in bank deposits pledged as security
Factoring charges and interest expense paid
Share issue expenses paid
Dividends paid to group shareholders
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

28
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

These notes form an integral part of and should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.
1.

GENERAL
LifeBrandz Ltd (the “Company”) is
incorporated and domiciled in Singapore
and is publicly traded on the Singapore
Exchange.
The principal activity of the Company is
that of investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are lifestyle,
brand management, marketing, sales
and distribution of lifestyle and fashion
products. The address of its principal place
of business is 123 Penang Road, #03-12
Regency House, Singapore 238465. The
beauty/wellness segment was discontinued
during the financial year (Note 10).

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below.
The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with FRS requires
management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. It also requires
the use of accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the
financial year. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates.
In 2006, the Group and Company
adopted the new or revised FRS and
Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) that
are applicable in the current financial

year. The 2005 financial statements
have been amended as required, in
accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions in the respective FRS and
INT FRS. The following are the FRS and
INT FRS that are relevant to the Group:
FRS 1
(revised 2004)

Presentation of
Financial Statements

FRS 2
(revised 2004)

Inventories

FRS 8
(revised 2004)

Accounting Polices,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

FRS 10
(revised 2004)

Events after the
Balance Sheet Date

FRS 16
(revised 2004)

Property, Plant and
Equipment

FRS 17
(revised 2004)

Leases

FRS 21
(revised 2004)

The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange
Rates

FRS 24
(revised 2004)

Related Party
Disclosures

FRS 27
(revised 2004)

Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements

FRS 32
(revised 2004)

Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and
Presentation

FRS 33
(revised 2004)

Earnings per Share

FRS 39
(revised 2004)

Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement

FRS 105

Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and
Discontinued
Operations

INT FRS 101

Changes in Existing
Decommissioning,
Restoration and Similar
Liabilities

The adoption of the above FRS and
INT FRS did not result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(b) Revenue recognition
Revenue for the Group comprises the
fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and
rendering of services, net of goods and
services tax, rebates and discounts,
and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as
follows:
(i)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when the Group
has delivered the products to
the customers, the customers
have accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(ii)

Rendering of services
Revenue from services is
recognised over the period in
which the services are rendered,
by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed
on the basis of actual service
provided as a proportion of total
services to be performed.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on
a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
(iv) Rental income
Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straightline basis over the lease term.

(c) Group accounting for subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has power to govern
the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.
The purchase method of accounting
is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair
value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued or liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values on the date
of acquisition, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interest. Please refer to
Note 2(e)(i) for the accounting policy on
goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred
to the Group to the date on which
that control ceases. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements,
intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to ensure
consistency of accounting policies with
those of the Group.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(c) Group accounting for subsidiaries (cont’d)
Minority interest is that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the Group. It is measured
at the minorities’ share of the fair value of the subsidiaries’ identifiable assets and liabilities at
the date of acquisition by the Group and the minorities’ share of changes in equity since the
date of acquisition, except when the losses applicable to the minority in a subsidiary exceed
the minority interest in the equity of that subsidiary. In such cases, the excess and further
losses applicable to the minority are attributed to the equity holders of the Company, unless
the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make good the losses. When that
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the profits applicable to the minority are attributed
to the equity holders of the Company until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed
by the equity holders of the Company has been recovered.
Please refer to Note 2(g) for the Company’s accounting policy on investments in subsidiaries.
(d) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(h)).
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included
as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement,
removal or restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.
(ii)

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Useful lives

Computer equipment
Office and operating equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvement and renovation
Plant and equipment

3 years
3 - 6 years
Shorter of 6 years or the lease term
Shorter of 6 years or the lease term
Shorter of 6 years or the lease term

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer
in use.
The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
(iii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits, in excess of the standard of performance of the asset before the
expenditure was made, will flow to the Group and the cost can be reliably measured.
Other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense during the financial year in
which it is incurred.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
(iv) Disposal
On disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment, the difference
between the net disposal proceeds
and its carrying amount is taken to
the income statement.

(h) Impairment of assets
(i) Goodwill
Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment, as well as when there
is any indication that the goodwill
may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment
testing of goodwill, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating-units (CGU)
expected to benefit from synergies
of the business combination.

(e) Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries
over the fair value of the Group’s
share of their identifiable net assets
and contingent liabilities at the date
of acquisition.

An impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement when the
carrying amount of CGU, including
goodwill, exceeds the recoverable
amount of the CGU. Recoverable
amount of the CGU is the higher
of the CGU’s fair value less cost
to sell and value in use.

Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses
(Note 2(h)).

The total impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to the CGU and then to
the other assets of the CGU prorata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the CGU.

Gains and losses on the disposal
of subsidiaries include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.
(ii)

(f)

Franchises and licences
Acquired franchises and licences
are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(h)).
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the franchise/licence over
the term of the franchise/licence.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are taken to the income
statement over the period of borrowing
using the effective interest method.

(g) Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (Note 2(h)) in the Company’s
balance sheet.

Impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
(ii)

Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and investments
in subsidiaries are reviewed for
impairment whenever there is any
indication that these assets may
be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less
cost to sell and value in use) of the
asset is estimated to determine
the amount of impairment loss.

On disposal of an investment, the
difference between net disposal
proceeds and its carrying amount
is taken to the income statement.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(h) Impairment of assets (cont’d)
(ii) Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)
For the purpose of impairment
testing of these assets, recoverable
amount is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other
assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs to.

(i)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a
debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are included in current
assets, except those maturing more
than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are
included in trade and other receivables
on the balance sheet (Note 2 (j)).

If the recoverable amount of the asset
(or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount.
The impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement unless the
asset is carried at revalued amount,
in which case, such impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An impairment loss for an asset other
than goodwill is reversed if, and only
if, there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the
assets’ recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of an asset
other than goodwill is increased
to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of
impairment loss for an asset other
than goodwill is recognised in the
income statement, unless the asset is
carried at revalued amount, in which
case, such reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase. However, to the
extent that an impairment loss on the
same revalued asset was previously
recognised in profit or loss, a reversal
of that impairment is also recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment in financial assets
The Group classifies its investments
in financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

(j)

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.
An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect
amounts due according to original
terms of the receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The
amount of allowance is recognised
in the income statement.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(k) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised
cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is taken to
the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
Borrowings which are due to be settled
within twelve months after the balance
sheet date are included in current
borrowings in the balance sheet
even though the original term was
for a period longer than 12 months
and an agreement to refinance, or to
reschedule payments, on a long-term
basis is completed after the balance
sheet date and before the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
Other borrowings due to be settled
more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date are included in non-current
borrowings in the balance sheet.
(l)

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially
measured at fair value, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

(m) Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of current
receivables and payables are assumed
to approximate their fair values.
(n) Operating leases
Leases of assets in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are taken to the
income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated
before the lease period has expired,
any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is
recognised as an expense in the period
in which termination takes place.
(o) Inventories
Inventories, comprising the finished
goods, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less selling
expenses.
(p) Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax is provided in
full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of
transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(q) Provisions for other liabilities and
charges
Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events;
it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made.
(r)

Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are
post-employment benefit plans
under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into separate
entities such as Central Provident
Fund, and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if any of the
funds does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the
current and preceding financial
years. The Group’s contributions
to defined contribution plans are
recognised in the financial year to
which they relate.
(ii)

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

(s) Currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial
statements of each entity in
the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary
economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented
in Singapore Dollar, which is
the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii)

Transactions and balances
Transactions in a currency other
than the functional currency
(“foreign currency”) are translated
into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions.
Currency translation gains and
losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

(iii) Translation of Group entities’
financial statements
The results and financial
position of group entities (none
of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation
currency as follows:
–

Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of the balance sheet;

–

Income and expenses for
each income statement
are translated at average
exchange rate; and

–

All resulting exchange
differences are taken to the
foreign currency translation
reserve within equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

2.

(w) Dividend
Interim dividends are recorded during
the financial year in which they are
declared payable. Final dividends are
recorded during the financial year in
which the dividends are approved by
the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
(s) Currency translation (cont’d)
(iv) Consolidation adjustments
On consolidation, currency
translation differences arising
from the net investment in foreign
operations, and borrowings
and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to foreign
currency translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is disposed
of, such currency translation
differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
(t)

Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of
assets and operations engaged in
providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment
is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic
environment that is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic
environments.

(u) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, deposits with financial
institutions and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are included in borrowings
on the balance sheet. Restricted cash
and deposits are excluded.
(v) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as
equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of new
equity instruments are taken to equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

(x) Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a
component of an entity that has been
disposed of and
(i)

represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of
operations; or

(ii)

is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of
operations; or

(iii) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.
3.

EFFECTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ON ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
FRS
The effects on adoption of the following
FRS in 2006 are set out below:
(a) FRS 16 (revised 2004) Property,
Plant and Equipment
Previously, in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 16 (now superseded
by FRS 16 (revised 2004)), residual
values were estimated only at the date
of acquisition and not subsequently
increased for changes in price.
The Group has re-measured the residual
value of its plant and equipment on
1 August 2005 in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 16 (revised 2004)
which requires the re-measurement of
the residual value of an item of property,
plant and equipment at least at each
financial year end (Note 2(d)). This
change did not materially affect the
financial statements for the year ended
31 July 2006.
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3.

EFFECTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED FRS
(CONT’D)
(b) FRS 27 (revised 2004) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Previously, there was no requirement for the presentation of minority interests within equity.
FRS 27 (revised 2004) requires minority interests to be presented with equity of the Group
retrospectively. This change did not materially affect the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 July 2006.
(c) FRS 39 (revised 2004) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
FRS 32 (revised 2004) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
Classification and consequential accounting for financial assets and financial liabilities
Previously, the Group’s trade and other payables and bank borrowings were stated at cost.
Bank borrowings were stated at the proceeds received and transaction costs on borrowings
were classified as deferred charges and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the borrowings. These financial liabilities are not held for trading and have not been
designated as fair value through profit or loss at inception on adoption of FRS 39 (revised
2004). In accordance with FRS 39 (revised 2004), they are initially recognised at fair value
less transaction costs and subsequently accounted for at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (Note 2(k) and Note 2(l)).
This change did not materially affect the financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2006.

4.

REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS (NET)
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Sale of goods
Rendering of services
Total revenue
Miscellaneous gains (net):
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) - net
Interest income from short-term bank deposits
Service charge surplus
Others
Total miscellaneous gains (net)
Exceptional gain:
Gain on disposal of 20% equity interest in a subsidiary
Total exceptional gain

17,413
1,650
19,063

-

9
233
1,147
40
1,429

(21)
260
239

1,800
1,800
22,292

239
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5.

AMORTISATION, DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss of goodwill
Impairment loss of franchises and licences

6.

318
1,187
35
232
1,772

3
3

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The following information relates to remunerations of directors of the Company during the
financial year.
The number of directors of the Company in remuneration bands as required under the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited Manual is set out below:
The Group
2006
2005

Number of directors of the Company in remuneration bands:
$250,000 to below $500,000
below $250,000
Total

7.

1
5
6

6
6

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Wages and salaries
Employer’s contribution to Central Provident Fund
Other benefits

8.

4,455
407
388
5,250

44
5
11
60

FINANCE EXPENSE
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Others

391
24
415

2
2
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9.

INCOME TAXES
(a) Income tax expense
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:
From continuing operations
Current income tax - Singapore
Deferred income tax (Note 22)

From discontinued operations
Current income tax - Singapore

Over-provision in preceding financial years:
current income tax from continuing operations
current income tax from discontinued operations

219
219

49
49

219

1,375
1,424

(6)
213

(2)
1,422

The tax expense on results differs from the amount that would arise using the Singapore
standard rate of income tax due to the following:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Profit/(loss) before tax from:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 20% (2005: 20%)
Effects of:
Different tax rates in other countries
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Income not subject to tax
Deferred tax assets not recognised on unutilised tax losses
mainly from discontinued operations
Singapore statutory stepped income exemption
Others
Tax charge

3,503
(24,786)
(21,283)

(556)
6,907
6,351

(4,257)

1,270

399
(360)

6
135
-

4,454
(42)
25
219

21
(23)
15
1,424

(b) Movements in current income tax liabilities
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Balance at beginning of financial year
Income tax paid
Tax expense/(credit) on results (Note 9(a))
current financial year
over-provision in the preceding
financial years
Balance at end of financial year

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

1,473
(1,463)

2,395
(2,344)

49
(45)

3
(1)

-

1,424

-

49

(6)
4

(2)
1,473

4

(2)
49
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Following the approval of the Board of Directors and the majority shareholders and completion of
sales and purchase agreement on 28 July 2006 to sell LifePharm Pte. Ltd., LifePharm Asia Limited
and Thainutri Co., Ltd (comprising of the Group’s beauty/wellness business segment), the results
of these entities are presented separately on the income statement as “Discontinued operations”.
An analysis of the results of discontinued operations is as follows:

Revenue
Expenses
(Loss)/profit before tax from discontinued operations
Income tax credit/(expense)
(Loss)/profit after tax from discontinued operations
Loss from disposal of subsidiaries
Total (loss)/profit from discontinued operations

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

3,672
(26,791)
(23,119)
6
(23,113)
(1,667)
(24,780)

42,679
(35,772)
6,907
(1,375)
5,532
5,532

The impact of the discontinued operations on the cash flows of the Group is as follows:

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Financing cash flows
Total cash flows

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

(14,798)
16,611
182
1,995

(687)
(644)
479
(852)

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year of
612,000,000 (2005: 612,000,000).
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic earnings/(loss) per share as there are no
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Continuing
operations
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Net profit/(loss) attributable
to members of
LifeBrandz Ltd
Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(cents per share)

Discontinued
operations
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Total
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2,856

(603)

(24,780)

5,532

(21,924)

4,929

0.47

(0.09)

(4.05)

0.90

(3.58)

0.81
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

5,195
8,707
13,902

3,945
16,080
20,025

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

501
6,707
7,208

2,172
16,080
18,252

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value and are
denominated in the following currencies:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Singapore Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar
Others

13,901
1
13,902

19,135
866
24
20,025

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

7,208
7,208

18,252
18,252

Short-term bank deposits with financial institutions are denominated in Singapore Dollar and have
an average maturity of 2 weeks (2005: 2 weeks) from the end of the financial year with weighted
average effective interest rate of 2.8% per annum (2005: 1.9% per annum). A short-term bank
deposit of $505,000 (2005: nil) is pledged to a bank as security for bank borrowings.
For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
the following:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Cash and bank balances (as above)
Less: Bank overdraft (Note 20)
Short-term bank deposit pledged as security
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement

13,902
(505)
13,397

20,025
(959)
19,066
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’D)
Disposals of subsidiaries
On 28 July 2006, the Company disposed of its 100% interest in LifePharm Pte. Ltd., LifePharm
Asia Limited and ThaiNutri Co., Ltd for a cash consideration of $3.
The aggregated effects of disposal of subsidiaries and aggregate cash outflows arising from the
disposals are as follows:
The Group
2006
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment
Other current assets
Total assets

2,751
2,009
27
53
382
5,222

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Total liabilities

2,107
1,600
3,707

Net identifiable assets disposed
Transfer from shareholders’ equity - currency translation differences
Goodwill arising from consolidation (Note 18)
Loss on disposals
Cash proceeds from disposals
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries disposed
Net cash outflow on disposals

1,515
15
137
(1,667)
-*
(2,751)
(2,751)

* Less than $1,000.
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Trade receivables
Third parties
Subsidiaries
Other receivables
Third parties
Subsidiaries
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
- Subsidiary
Other receivables - net

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

576
576

16,377
16,377

18
53
71

-

809
809

520
520

804
3,722
4,526

347
4,378
4,725

809
1,385

520
16,897

(1,449)
3,077
3,148

4,725
4,725

As at 31 July 2005, trade receivables amounting to $2,589,000 had been factored on a nonrecourse arrangement. Trade receivables are presented net of amount factored.
Other receivables from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value and are
denominated in the following currencies:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Singapore Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar
Indonesia Rupiah
Great Britain Pound
Others

1,328
32
25
1,385

14,030
2,306
113
116
332
16,897

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

3,091
32
25
3,148

4,464
113
116
32
4,725

14. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Prepayments
Deposits

631
475
1,106

2,407
1,261
3,668

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

21
117
138

118
1,000
1,118

The carrying amounts of deposits approximate their fair value.
15. LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY
Loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.
The carrying amount of the loan to a subsidiary approximates its fair value and is denominated in
Singapore Dollar.
16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Investments at cost
Less: Impairment loss

3,500
(200)
3,300

5,339
5,339
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Name of companies

Held by the Company
LifePharm Pte. Ltd. (a)

Principal activities

Country of
incorporation

Equity interest
held by
the Company
2006
2005
%
%

Marketing and sale of health,
beauty, personal care and
lifestyle products

Singapore

-

100

LifePharm Asia Limited (b)

Marketing and sale of health,
beauty, personal care and
lifestyle products

Hong Kong

-

100

ThaiNutri Co., Ltd (c)

Marketing and sale of health,
beauty, personal care and
lifestyle products

Thailand

-

49

Brandz+ Pte. Ltd. (a)

Design, layout and production
of graphics and web-marketing
info and production of all
marketing info and collaterals
and shared services

Singapore

100

100

LifePharm Inc (e)

Dormant

British Virgin
Islands

100

100

Orientstar Group Limited (e)

Intellectual property licensing
and management

British Virgin
Islands

100

100

LB Investments Limited (d)

Intellectual property licensing
and management

Mauritius

100

100

Dashing Diva Pte. Ltd. (a)

Brand management, marketing,
sales, distribution and subfranchise of fashion products

Singapore

100

100

N-Inc Pte. Ltd. (a)

Sales and distribution of fashion
products

Singapore

100

100

Luminox Pte. Ltd. (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment
related business

Singapore

100

100

Balcony Pte. Ltd. (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment
businesses

Singapore

100

-

Palms Development
Pte. Ltd. (f)

Dormant

Singapore

100

-

Cannery Holding Pte. Ltd. (a)

Investment holding

Singapore

80

-
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
Name of companies

Country of
incorporation

Principal activities

Equity interest
held by
the Company
2006
2005
%
%

Held by Cannery Holding
Pte. Ltd.
Cannery Leisure Pte. Ltd. (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment
businesses

Singapore

80

-

Ministry of Sound Pte. Ltd. (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment
businesses

Singapore

80

-

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore.
Audited by RSM Nelson Wheeler.
Audited by FBLP Audit and Business Consulting Services Ltd.
Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Mauritius.
Not required to be audited under the laws of the country of incorporation.
Newly incorporated and not required to be audited under the laws of the country of incorporation
in the current year.

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office and
Computer operating
equipment equipment

Leasehold
Furniture improvement
and
and Plant and Renovation
fixtures
renovation equipment in progress

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Cost
At 1 August 2005
Additions
Written off
Disposals
At 31 July 2006

397
438
(165)
670

505
134
(56)
(343)
240

68
933
(15)
(20)
966

521
4,770
(110)
5,181

2,209
(1)
2,208

596
596

1,491
9,080
(72)
(638)
9,861

Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 August 2005
Depreciation
Written off
Disposals
At 31 July 2006

157
188
(105)
240

221
180
(22)
(274)
105

28
130
(15)
143

161
823
(105)
879

261
261

-

567
1,582
(22)
(499)
1,628

Net book value
At 31 July 2006

430

135

823

4,302

1,947

596

8,233

THE GROUP
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
Computer Office and
equipment operating
equipment

Leasehold
Furniture improvement
and
and Plant and Renovation
fixtures
renovation equipment in progress

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

279

327

33

176

-

-

815

(7)
125
397

(2)
180
505

(1)
36
68

(6)
412
(61)
521

-

-

(16)
753
(61)
1,491

THE GROUP
Cost
At 1 August 2004
Exchange rate
adjustments
Additions
Written off
At 31 July 2005
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 August 2004
Exchange rate
adjustments
Depreciation
Written off
At 31 July 2005

44

73

11

62

-

-

190

(1)
114
157

148
221

17
28

(3)
143
(41)
161

-

-

(4)
422
(41)
567

Net book value
At 31 July 2005

240

284

40

360

-

-

924

Cost
At 1 August 2005
Additions
At 31 July 2006

91
91

64
64

16
16

222
222

-

-

393
393

Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 August 2005
Depreciation
At 31 July 2006

5
5

4
4

1
1

12
12

-

-

22
22

Net book value
At 31 July 2006

86

60

15

210

-

-

371

THE COMPANY
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Goodwill arising on consolidation (note (a))
Franchises and licences (note (b))

991
991

172
942
1,114

(a) Goodwill arising on consolidation
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Balance at beginning of financial year
Acquisition of subsidiary
Impairment loss
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 12)
Balance at end of financial year

172
(35)
(137)
-

178
(6)
172

(b) Franchises and licences
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Balance at beginning of financial year
Additions
Amortisation
Written off
Impairment loss
Balance at end of financial year
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

942
686
(318)
(87)
(232)
991

942
942

1,541
(550)
991

942
942

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Trade payables
Third parties
Subsidiary

Other payables - third parties
Deferred revenue
Accrued operating expenses

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

1,353
1,353

4,654
4,654

22
3
25

37
37

166
645
2,017
4,181

1,553
6,207

506
531

124
161
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19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair value and are denominated
in the following currencies:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Singapore Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar
New Taiwan Dollar
United States Dollar
Others

4,114
30
37
4,181

3,417
1,577
672
526
15
6,207

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

531
531

160
1
161

20. BORROWINGS
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Current
Bank overdraft
Bank borrowings

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

5,973
5,973

959
600
1,559

2,917
2,917

-

Non-current
Bank borrowings

2,083

-

2,083

-

Total borrowings

8,056

1,559

5,000

-

(a) Security granted
Bank borrowings of a subsidiary are secured by corporate guarantee undertaken by the
Company. A charge is made over short-term bank deposits of $505,000 placed with a
financial institution for a bank borrowing granted to the Company.
(b) Maturity of borrowings
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Less than one year
Later than one year and
not later than five years

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

5,973

1,559

2,917

-

2,083
8,056

1,559

2,083
5,000

-

The current borrowings have an average maturity of 11 months (2005: 2 months) from the
end of the financial year.
(c) Currency risk
The carrying amounts of total borrowings are denominated in Singapore Dollar.
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20. BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
(d) Interest rate risk
The weighted average effective interest rates of total borrowings at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

Bank overdraft
Bank borrowings

2006

2005

6.2%

5.3%
4.1%

Please refer to Note 27 for interest rate re-pricing.
(e) Carrying amounts and fair values
The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate their fair value. The fair value of
non-current borrowings is $1,899,000, determined from a discounted cash flow analysis,
using a discount rate based on borrowing rates which the directors expect would be
available to the Group at the balance sheet date.
(f)

Breach of bank covenant
As at 31 July 2006, a subsidiary of the Group is not in compliance with the financial ratio
requirement of a loan extended to the subsidiary. The outstanding loan amounting to
$3,056,000 is classified as current liabilities as at 31 July 2006.
Subsequent to 31 July 2006, the subsidiary has obtained a letter from the bank
acknowledging the breach of the financial ratio requirement and the bank has accordingly
revised the terms and conditions of the loan in this respect.

21. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITY
The Company has issued unsecured guarantees in respect of banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary. The subsidiary was disposed during the year and accordingly, a provision is made for
the contingent liability in event that this guarantee is called upon should the disposed subsidiary
is unable to repay its borrowing.
22. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are
shown on the balance sheets as follows:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered within one year
Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled within one year
to be settled after one year

(1)

-

115
105
220
219

-
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22. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (CONT’D)
The movements in deferred income tax account are as follows:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Balance at beginning of financial year
Tax charge to income statement (Note 9)
Balance at end of financial year

219
219

-

The movements in the deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:
The Group
Deferred income tax liabilities/(assets)
Accelerated tax
depreciation

Provision

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

221
221

(2)
(2)

219
219

Balance at beginning of financial year
Tax charge to income statement (Note 9)
Balance at end of financial year
23. SHARE CAPITAL OF LIFEBRANDZ LTD
No. of shares

Amount

Authorised
share
capital

Issued
share
capital

Authorised
share
capital

Issued
share
capital

Share
premium

Total share
capital and
share
premium

‘000

‘000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

612,000

100,000

6,120

22,988

29,108

-

(100,000)

22,988

(22,988)

-

612,000

-

29,108

-

29,108

612,000

100,000

6,120

23,068

29,188

-

-

-

(80)

(80)

612,000

100,000

6,120

22,988

29,108

2006
Balance at beginning
of financial year 10,000,000
Effect of Companies
(Amendment)
Act 2005 (see
Note below)
(10,000,000)
Balance at end of
financial year
2005
Balance at beginning
of financial year 10,000,000
Share issue expenses
adjustment
Balance at end
of financial year 10,000,000

Note: Under the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005 that came into effect on 30 January 2006,
the concepts of par value and authorised share capital are abolished and the amount
in the share premium account as of 30 January 2006 is required to become part of the
Company’s share capital.
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24. DIVIDENDS
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Ordinary dividends paid
Final tax exempt dividend in respect of the previous
financial year of 0.10 cent (2005: 0.73 cent) per share

616

4,468

25. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the
financial statements is as follows:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Leasehold improvement
Intangible assets - franchises and licences

1,616
30
1,646

719
719

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

-

-

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases various offices, shops and other premises under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, computed based on the
agreed fixed lease rental rates are as follows:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not
later than five years
More than five years

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

4,346

1,398

464

-

14,627
2,057
21,030

16,467
2,227
20,092

626
1,090

-

Under the terms of certain lease arrangements, the Group shall pay a yearly variable lease
rental, computed based on a certain percentage of gross revenue generated by Group’s
operations at the leased premises.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company has issued unsecured guarantees in respect of banking facilities granted by banks
to its subsidiaries, including a subsidiary disposed during the financial year as follows:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Corporate guarantees (unsecured) in respect
of banking facilities granted by banks to:
subsidiaries
a subsidiary disposed during
the financial year
Banker guarantees (unsecured) issued in
respect of lease deposits of subsidiaries

The Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

-

-

8,700

8,700

9,700

-

9,700

13,200

9,700

-

1,554
19,954

21,900

The directors do not expect any significant liability that will crystallise from the guarantees other
than as disclosed in Note 21.
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks as follows:
Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from borrowings and short-term bank deposits. Apart
from borrowings and short-term bank deposits, all other financial assets and liabilities at year-end
are non-interest bearing. The borrowings are subject to re-pricing in less than 6 months (2005: 6
months) at balance sheet date with interest adjusted at a margin over the banks’ prime lending
rate. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the
borrowings and short-term bank deposits are maintained at favourable rates.
Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of goods and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history
and that credit terms for each customer are periodically reviewed.
Liquidity risk
The Group has minimum exposure to liquidity risk as it has adequate amounts of cash and credit
facilities to ensure flexibility in funding.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Besides as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, there was no related party
transaction between the Group and related parties during the financial years ended 31 July
2006 and 2005.
(b) The key management personnel compensation is as follows:
The Group
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits - contribution to CPF

1,205
43
1,248

951
25
976

Including in the above, total compensation for the directors of the Company amounted to
$874,000 (2005: $656,000). The banding of directors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 6.
Certain directors of the Company are contractually entitled to performance bonuses
calculated based on the Group’s profit before tax. No performance bonuses will be paid out
due to the Group’s loss in the current financial year.
29. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Primary reporting format - business segments
During the financial year, the Group operates its businesses under the business segments of
beauty/wellness (previously identified as brand development and management of health, beauty
and personal/family care products segment) and lifestyle. At the end of the financial year, the
beauty/wellness segment is completely disposed and continuing operations are under a single
business segment of lifestyle.
Inter-segment transactions are determined on an arm’s length basis. Unallocated costs represent
corporate expenses and shared services expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, receivables and operating cash and exclude
deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such
as tax liabilities, bank borrowings and loan from ultimate holding company. Capital expenditure
comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)
Primary reporting format – business segments (cont’d)
Financial year ended 31 July 2006

Sales:
external sales
inter-segment sales
Elimination

Segment results
Other gains (net) - miscellaneous
Other gains - exceptional income
Unallocated costs
Finance expense
Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Total profit/(loss)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure:
property, plant and equipment
franchises and licenses
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairment losses:
goodwill
franchises and licenses

Continuing
operations lifestyle
segment

Discontinued
operations beauty/
wellness
segment

$’000

$’000

19,063
4,143
23,206
(4,143)
19,063

3,672
68
3,740
(68)
3,672

1,721
1,429
1,800
(1,032)
3,918
(415)
3,503
(219)
3,284

(23,054)
136
(22,918)
(201)
(23,119)
6
(1,667)
(24,780)

9,014
686
1,187
318

66
395
-

232

35
-

Total
consolidated
- lifestyle
segment
$’000

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets

17,551
8,603
26,154

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

6,516
7,544
14,060
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)
Primary reporting format – business segments (cont’d)
Financial year ended 31 July 2005
Continuing
operations lifestyle
segment

Discontinued
operations beauty/
wellness
segment

$’000

$’000

523
523
(523)
-

42,679
139
42,818
(139)
42,679

Finance expense
(Loss)/Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Total (loss)/profit

(676)
239
(117)
(554)
(2)
(556)
(47)
(603)

6,982
57
7,039
(132)
6,907
(1,375)
5,532

Other segment items
Capital expenditure:
property, plant and equipment
franchises and licenses
Depreciation
Impairment loss on goodwill

16
942
3
-

737
419
6

Sales:
external sales
inter-segment sales
Elimination

Segment results
Other gains (net) - miscellaneous
Unallocated costs

Total
consolidated
$’000

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Disposal group - beauty/wellness segment
Consolidated total assets

1,468
19,763
22,004
43,235

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Disposal group - beauty/wellness segment
Consolidated total liabilities

20
1,676
7,543
9,239
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the financial year ended 31 July 2006

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)
Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
Sales are based on the country in which the customer is located. Total assets and capital
expenditure are shown by the geographical area where the assets are located.
Sales for continuing
operations
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Singapore
Hong Kong
Indonesia
Taiwan
Thailand

19,063
19,063

-

Sales for discontinued
operations
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

1,814
1,925
(67)
3,672

26,600
7,913
2,898
3,100
2,168
42,679

Total sales
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

20,877
1,925
(67)
22,735

26,600
7,913
2,898
3,100
2,168
42,679

Total consolidated
assets
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Singapore
Hong Kong
Thailand

17,551
17,551

21,252
399
1,821
23,472

Unallocated assets

8,603
26,154

19,763
43,235

Capital expenditure for
continuing operations
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Singapore
Hong Kong

9,700
9,700

-

Capital expenditure for
discontinued operations
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

66
66

1,672
23
1,695

Total consolidated
capital expenditure
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

9,766
9,766

1,672
23
1,695

30. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND FRS INTERPRETATIONS
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are mandatory
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006. The Company does not expect
that adoption of these accounting standards or interpretations will have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements for the financial year ending 31 July 2007.
31. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors of LifeBrandz Ltd on 18 October 2006.
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| STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS |
as at 26 October 2006

Issued and fully paid-up capital
Number of shares
Class of shares
Voting rights

:
:
:
:

S$29,108,034
612,000,000
Ordinary
One vote per share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2006

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS

1 - 999
1,000 - 10,000
10,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 AND ABOVE

NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS

% OF
SHAREHOLDERS

NO. OF SHARES

% OF ISSUED
SHARE CAPITAL

3
853
1,310
32
2,198

0.14
38.81
59.60
1.45
100.00

500
4,673,000
101,996,800
505,329,700
612,000,000

0.00
0.76
16.67
82.57
100.00

NO. OF SHARES

% OF HOLDINGS

135,000,000
61,416,000
51,019,000
48,976,800
42,174,800
32,530,000
25,029,000
22,038,000
17,845,000

22.06
10.04
8.34
8.00
6.89
5.32
4.09
3.60
2.92

11,333,300
8,582,000
6,666,000
5,448,300
5,145,000
3,409,000
3,084,000
2,313,000
2,266,000
2,248,000
2,237,000
488,760,200

1.85
1.40
1.09
0.89
0.84
0.56
0.50
0.38
0.37
0.37
0.37
79.88

TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2006
NO. NAME OF SHAREHOLDER

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

C.H.Y REGALIA LIMITED
LIM & TAN SECURITIES PTE LTD
SOUTHERN NOMINEES (S) SDN BHD
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
MICHAEL WONG C.K.
HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD
KENNETH GOH TZU SEOH
LEE SENG CHOON
DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD
MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (SINGAPORE)
SECURITIES PTE LTD
11 KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD.
12 NG WONG WAI LAN
13 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD
14 SONG POO HOK
15 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD
16 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
17 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD
18 TANN KAH HUAT ERIC
19 TAN POH HUA
20 OCBC NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
TOTAL:
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| STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS |
as at 26 October 2006

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS PER REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS
AT 26 OCTOBER 2006

NO. NAME

NO. OF SHARES
HELD AS DIRECT

NO. OF SHARES
HELD AS DEEMED

135,000,000
84,174,800
82,348,000
60,100,000
-

137,800,000
38,320,800
38,320,800

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

C.H.Y. Regalia Limited
Ang Yee Lim*
Michael Wong C.K.
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Annie Guat Khuan Chew**
Thomas Carlton Thompson, III***

*

Deemed to have an interest in 135,000,000 ordinary shares of S$0.01 each held by C.H.Y.
Regalia Limited.

**

Deemed interest arising from shares held by Centennial Overseas Limited and Entelechy Holdings
Ltd.

*** Deemed interest arising from the interest of spouse, Ms Annie Guat Khuan Chew, whose deemed
interest arising from shares held by Centennial Overseas Limited and Entelechy Holdings Ltd.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information available to the Company as at 26 October 2006, approximately 34% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company were held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing
Manual, issued by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, is complied with.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING |
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Third Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
at Copthorne Orchid Hotel Singapore, Aerides 1, Level 1, 214 Dunearn Road, Singapore 299526
on 29 November 2006 at 3.30pm to transact the following businesses:AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 July 2006 and the Reports of the Directors’
and Auditors’ thereon.
2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$142,000 for the
financial year ended 31 July 2006.

3.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 107 of
the Company’s Articles of Association:-

(Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2)

(a) Mr Michael Wong C.K.

(Resolution 3)

(b) Mr Lee Soon Kie

(Resolution 4)

Mr Lee Soon Kie will upon re-election as a Director of the Company,
remain as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Nominating
Committee and member of the Audit Committee and will be considered
independent for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
4.

To appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company in place
of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers for the financial year ending
31 July 2007 and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

5.

To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly
transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

(Resolution 5)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary resolution
with or without modifications:
6.

Authority to allot and issue shares
“That, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50,
and the listing rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX-ST”), approval be and is hereby given to the Directors
of the Company at any time to such persons and upon such terms
and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion
deem fit, to allot and issue shares and convertible securities of the
Company on such terms and conditions and with such rights or
restrictions as they may deem fit, provided always that:
(i)

(Resolution 6)

the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this
resolution (including shares to be issued in pursuance of
Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution) does
not exceed 50% of the Company’s issued share capital, of which
the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued
in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this

| 59 |
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING |
resolution) to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to
shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20% of the
issued share capital of the Company, and for the purpose of
this resolution, the issued share capital shall be the Company’s
issued share capital at the time this resolution is passed,
after adjusting for;

(ii)

a)

new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of
convertible securities, or

b)

new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting
of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time this
resolution is passed provided the options or awards were
granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, and

c)

any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s
shares, and

such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company
at a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting or the date by which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held,
whichever is the earlier.” (See Explanatory Note 1)

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
KOH BOON LIANG/ TAN PING PING
Joint Company Secretaries
Singapore, 14 November 2006
Notes:
1) A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not
more than two proxies in his stead.

| 60 |

2)

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3)

If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of its duly
authorised officer or attorney.

4)

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at 123 Penang Road #03-12, Singapore 238465 not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the Meeting.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING |
Explanatory Note:1. The ordinary resolution in item no. 4 is to seek the shareholders’ approval to appoint Messrs
Ernst & Young who have given their consent to act as auditors of the Company. The proposed
change of auditors was made on the basis the Board of Directors having reviewed the fee
proposal received from Messrs Ernst & Young and in consultation with the Audit Committee
determined that Messrs Ernst & Young’s quotation to be most competitive and for the reason
of cost efficiency, the Board of Directors are proposing to appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as
Auditors of the Company in place of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers for the financial year
ending 31 July 2007.
2.

The ordinary resolution in item no. 6 is to authorise the Directors of the Company from the date
of the above Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting to issue shares and convertible
securities in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50 percent of the issued
share capital of the Company of which the total number of shares and convertible securities
issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders shall not exceed 20 percent of
the issued share capital of the Company at the time the resolution is passed, for such purposes
as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. This authority will, unless revoked
or varied at a general meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

| 61 |
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LIFEBRANDZ LTD.
Company Registration no. 200311348E
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

IMPORTANT
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy
LifeBrandz Ltd shares, the Annual Report is forwarded to
them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is
sent FOR INFORMATION ONLY.
2.

This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall
be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported
to be used by them.

PROXY FORM
*I/We

(Name) of
(Address)

being a *member/members of LifeBrandz Ltd. (the “Company”), hereby appoint
Name

Address

NRIC/Passport No

Proportion of
shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

or failing *him/her, the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting of the Company as *my/our *proxy/proxies
to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held at Copthorne Orchid Hotel Singapore, Aerides 1, Level 1, 214 Dunearn Road,
Singapore 299526 on 29 November 2006 at 3.30pm and at any adjournment thereof.
*I/We direct *my/our *proxy/proxies to vote for or against the ordinary resolutions to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting as indicated with an “X” in the spaces provided hereunder. If no specified
directions as to voting are given, the *proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at *his/their discretion.
No.

Ordinary Resolutions

For

1

To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company
for the year ended 31 July 2006 and the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2

To approve the Directors’ fees of S$142,000 for the financial
year ended 31 July 2006.

3

To re-elect Mr Michael Wong C.K. pursuant to Article 107 of
the Company’s Articles of Association.

4

To re-elect Mr Lee Soon Kie pursuant to Article 107 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

5

To appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company in
place of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers for the financial year
ending 2007 and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

6

To authorise Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to
Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

Dated this

day of

2006.

Against

Total Number of Shares Held

Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal
* Delete accordingly

IMPORTANT Please read notes overleaf
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Notes :
1. A member of the Company
vote at the Annual General
appoint not more than two
vote in his stead. Such proxy
of the Company.

entitled to attend and
Meeting is entitled to
proxies to attend and
need not be a member

2.

Where a member of the Company appoints two proxies,
he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding
(expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be
represented by each such proxy.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be
under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing
a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must
be executed either under its common seal or under
the hand of its attorney or duly authorised officer.

4.

A corporation which is a member of the Company may
authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing
body such person as it thinks fit to act as its
representative at the Annual General Meeting, in
accordance with its Articles of Association and Section
179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, together
with the power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or notarially certified copy
thereof, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company at 123 Penang Road #03-12, Singapore
238465 not later than 48 hours before the time set for
the Annual General Meeting.

6.

A member should insert the total number of shares
held. If the member has shares entered against his

name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section
130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore),
he should insert that number of shares. If the member
has shares registered in his name in the Register of
Members of the Company, he should insert that number
of shares. If the member has shares entered against
his name in the Depository Register and shares
registered in his name in the Register of Members of
the Company, he should insert the aggregate number
of shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy
will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by the
member of the Company.
7.

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument
appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete,
improperly completed or illegible or where the true
intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from
the instructions of the appointor specified in the
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition,
in the case of members of the Company whose shares
are entered against their names in the Depository
Register, the Company may reject any instrument
appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such members
are not shown to have shares entered against their
names in the Depository Register 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting
as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to
the Company.

8.

A Depositor shall not be regarded as a member of the
Company entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting
and to speak and vote thereat unless his name appears
on the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the
time set for the Annual General Meeting.

AFFIX
STAMP
HERE

THE COMPANY SECRETARY
LIFEBRANDZ LTD
123 Penang Road
#03-12 Regency House
Singapore 238465
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LifeBrandz Ltd
123 Penang Road
#03-12 Regency House
Singapore 238465

T (65) 6733 3280
F (65) 6733 3910
E invest@lifebrandz.com
W www.lifebrandz.com

Registration Number: 200311348E

LifeBrandz Ltd

OUR BUSINESS
| 2006 |

“LifeBrandz is committed to its
core business of developing
and managing consumer
brands for the Asia region. The
Company’s strength is its ability
to identify and target existing
and forthcoming opportunities
in the market then capitalising
on them by developing well
devised branding strategies and
following through to actualising
the complete consumer
experience package.”

LifeBrandz Ltd
123 Penang Road
#03-12 Regency House
Singapore 238465
www.lifebrandz.com
T: (65) 6733 3280
Ministry Of Sound
Clarke Quay Singapore
Block C – The Cannery
www.ministryofsound.com.sg
T: (65) 6235 2292

The Balcony
The Heeren Mall
#01-K5/02-03
www.balconybar.com
T: (65) 6736 2326

Fashion TV
Opening Soon @
Clarke Quay Singapore
Block C –The Cannery
www.ftv.com

Dashing Divaa
Suntec City Mall
#01-02/04/06
www.dashingdiva.com.sg
T: (65) 6334 1811

BICE Ristorante
Opening Soon @
Clarke Quay Singapore
Block C –The Cannery
www.bice.ws

Café del Mar
Opening Soon in Singapore
www.cafedelmarmusic.com

Nué
Paragon Shopping Centre
#03-31/32
www.nuenue.com
T: (65) 6836 7677

a | RAINDANCE | concept and production

| Michael Wong C.K. CEO |
| Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh COO |

This series of postcards provide
an overview of Our Lifebrandz
Businesses. Please refer to
www.lifebrandz.com for more
information.

Corporate Communications

| Tammy Tan |

“It’s always nice to be able to enjoy
good food and fine wine in a beautiful
setting. BICE Ristorante, with its great
Northern Italian Cuisine, certainly qualifies
on all counts. My only concern now is
whether my waistline can take it.”

BICE Ristorante
Opening Soon @ Clarke Quay
Singapore, Block C – The Cannery
www.bice.ws

Affix
Stamp
Here

Former Miss Singapore World

| Jac Ang |

“The exquisite insoles make Nue shoes
unique – in fact it is more like collecting a
piece of art, rather than buying shoes. You
will want to own each and every Nue design.”
Nué
Paragon Shopping Centre #03-31/32
www.nuenue.com
T: (65) 6836 7677

Affix
Stamp
Here

Affix
Stamp
Here

“Having a drink at the FashionBar will be like
sipping a cocktail in the front row seat of a
fashion show. I will be able to unwind, admire
beautiful clothing up close and catch interviews
of my favorite designers all at the same time.
What more can I say? It’s a perfect night out.”
| Jenny Jeremiah |
Fashion Show Director

Fashion Bar
Opening Soon @ Clarke Quay
Singapore, Block C – The Cannery
www.ftv.com

Affix
Stamp
Here

“The Balcony is a daringly fresh look at
the whole lifestyle concept for chill-out
joints. Recently launched, the subtle mix
of Mediterranean glamour and millennial
appeal has been turning heads.”
Excerpt with permission from

| SPH – The Straits Times |
28 November 2005

The Balcony
The Heeren Mall #01-K5/02-03
www.balconybar.com
T: (65) 6736 2326

Affix
Stamp
Here

“At 2,200 sq ft, it (Dashing Diva)
stakes claim to being the largest
nail spa in Singapore. Boasting
more than 150 nail polish colours
and about 20 manicurists...”
Excerpt with permission from

| SPH – The Straits Times |
6 October 2005

Dashing Diva
Suntec City Mall #01-02/04/06
www.dashingdiva.com.sg
T: (65) 6334 1811

Photographer

| Nicholas Leong |

“The ultra chill setting complete with a
stunning sunset backdrop and ambient
electric music is what I remember most
about Calo Des Moro in San Antonio,
Ibiza – having Cafe Del Mar in Singapore
will certainly add an element of
sophistication to our clubbing scene.”

Café del Mar
Opening Soon in Singapore
www.cafedelmarmusic.com
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PallMall

SkyLounge

Smoove

Smoove Members

Foyer

Studio 54

Arena

Arena Members

Dunhill Room

Pure

21 April 2006

| SPH – The Straits Times |

Excerpt with permission from

“MOS is becoming the
all-encompassing haven
for casual seekers of club
action. Thanks to this
size-driven venue, the
much-needed evolution
of clubs to become more
appeal-specific is taking
shape faster.”

Ministry Of Sound
Clarke Quay Singapore,
Block C – The Cannery
www.ministryofsound.com.sg
T: (65) 6235 2292

Affix
Stamp
Here

